

MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the
LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from electronic originals
(may include minor formatting differences from printed original)

LAWS
OF THE
STATE OF MAINE

AS PASSED BY THE

ONE HUNDRED AND THIRTIETH LEGISLATURE

SECOND SPECIAL SESSION
September 29, 2021

SECOND REGULAR SESSION
January 5, 2022 to May 9, 2022

THE GENERAL EFFECTIVE DATE FOR
SECOND SPECIAL SESSION
NON-EMERGENCY LAWS IS
DECEMBER 29, 2021

THE GENERAL EFFECTIVE DATE FOR
SECOND REGULAR SESSION
NON-EMERGENCY LAWS IS
AUGUST 8, 2022

PUBLISHED BY THE REVISOR OF STATUTES
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MAINE REVISED STATUTES ANNOTATED,
TITLE 3, SECTION 163-A, SUBSECTION 4.

Augusta, Maine
2022

employees exempted from the definition of "judicial employee" under section 1282, subsection 5, except that cost items for employees exempted under section 1282, subsection 5, ~~paragraphs paragraph F and G,~~ need not be excluded.

Sec. 11. 30-A MRSA §501, sub-§2-A, as enacted by PL 2009, c. 106, §1, is amended to read:

2-A. Probationary period for corrections officials. ~~Beginning October 1, 2009, a~~ A person who is hired as jailer, master, keeper or a subordinate assistant or employee under section 1501 must complete an employment probationary period that lasts for one year. During the probationary period, a person who is hired as jailer, master, keeper or a subordinate assistant or employee under section 1501 may be dismissed, suspended or otherwise disciplined without cause. Dismissal, suspension or any other disciplinary action against an employee during the probationary period is not subject to the grievance and arbitration provision of the collective bargaining agreement.

Sec. 12. 30-A MRSA §2701, amended by PL 1993, c. 744, §15, is further amended by adding at the end a new paragraph to read:

During the probationary period, an employee may be dismissed, suspended or otherwise disciplined without cause. Dismissal, suspension or any other disciplinary action against an employee during the probationary period is not subject to the grievance and arbitration provision of the collective bargaining agreement.

See title page for effective date.

CHAPTER 602

H.P. 834 - L.D. 1156

**An Act To Reduce Errors in
Employment Tax Increment
Financing Benefits**

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. 36 MRSA §6753, sub-§5-B is enacted to read:

5-B. Benefit base. "Benefit base" means the total incremental gross wages paid during the calendar year by a qualified business to qualified employees multiplied by 4.5%.

Sec. 2. 36 MRSA §6753, sub-§7, as amended by PL 2005, c. 351, §22 and affected by §26, is further amended to read:

7. Employment tax increment. "Employment For reimbursement based on calendar years prior to 2022, "employment tax increment" means that level of employment, payroll and state income withholding taxes attributed to qualified employees employed by a

qualified business above the base level for the qualified business, adjusted pursuant to subsection 12 for shifts in employment by affiliated businesses. For reimbursement based on calendar year 2022, and for each calendar year thereafter, "employment tax increment" means the total gross wages paid by a qualified business to qualified employees above the base level of employment for the qualified business.

Sec. 3. 36 MRSA §6753, sub-§9, as enacted by PL 1995, c. 669, §5, is amended to read:

9. Gross employment tax increment. "Gross For reimbursement based on calendar years prior to 2022, "gross employment tax increment" means that level of employment, payroll and State state income tax withholding taxes attributed to qualified employees employed by a qualified business that is greater than the base level for the qualified business. For reimbursement based on calendar year 2022, and for each calendar year thereafter, "gross employment tax increment" means the total gross wages paid by a qualified business to qualified employees above the base level of employment for the qualified business.

Sec. 4. 36 MRSA §6753, sub-§9-A is enacted to read:

9-A. Gross wages. "Gross wages" means taxable wages, tips and other compensation included on the wage and tax statement for services performed in this State during the calendar year.

Sec. 5. 36 MRSA §6754, sub-§1, as amended by PL 2021, c. 398, Pt. III, §7, is further amended to read:

1. Generally. Subject to the provisions of subsection 2, a qualified business is entitled to reimbursement of ~~Maine income tax withheld~~ gross wages paid during the calendar year for which reimbursement is requested and attributed to qualified employees after July 1, 1996 in the following amounts.

A. For qualified employees employed by a qualified business in labor market areas in this State in which the labor market unemployment rate is at or below the State's unemployment rate at the time of application, the reimbursement is equal to 30% of ~~Maine income tax withheld~~ the benefit base during each of the first 5 calendar years for which reimbursement is requested and attributed to those qualified employees. The percentage of reimbursement for the 6th to 10th years of the employment tax increment financing development program is established based upon the labor market unemployment rate at the beginning of the 6th year.

B. For qualified employees employed by a qualified business in labor market areas in this State in which the labor market unemployment rate is greater than the State's unemployment rate at the time of application, the reimbursement is equal to

50% of ~~Maine income tax withheld~~ the benefit base during each of the first 5 calendar years for which reimbursement is requested and attributed to those qualified employees. The percentage of reimbursement for the 6th to 10th years of the employment tax increment financing development program is established based upon the labor market unemployment rate at the beginning of the 6th year.

C. For qualified employees employed by a qualified business in labor market areas in this State in which the labor market unemployment rate is greater than 150% of the State's unemployment rate at the time of application, the reimbursement is equal to 75% of ~~Maine income tax withheld~~ the benefit base during each of the first 5 calendar years for which reimbursement is requested and attributed to those qualified employees. The percentage of reimbursement for the 6th to 10th years of the employment tax increment financing development program is established based upon the labor market unemployment rate at the beginning of the 6th year.

D. For qualified Pine Tree Development Zone employees, as defined in Title 30-A, section 5250-I, subsection 18, employed directly in the qualified business activity of a qualified Pine Tree Development Zone business, as defined in Title 30-A, section 5250-I, subsection 17, for whom a certificate of qualification has been issued in accordance with Title 30-A, section 5250-O, the reimbursement under this subsection is equal to 80% of ~~Maine income tax withheld~~ the benefit base each year for which reimbursement is requested and attributed to those qualified employees for a period of no more than 10 years for a tier 1 location as defined in Title 30-A, section 5250-I, subsection 21-A and no more than 5 years for a tier 2 location as defined in Title 30-A, section 5250-I, subsection 21-B. Reimbursement under this paragraph may not be paid for years beginning after December 31, 2033.

Sec. 6. 36 MRSA §6762 is enacted to read:

§6762. Benefit calculation for calendar years beginning with 2022

Notwithstanding any provision of this chapter to the contrary, for requests for reimbursement under this chapter for calendar years beginning after December 31, 2021, the amount of reimbursement must be based on the benefit base for a qualified employer rather than on the amount of income tax withheld for qualified employees. The commissioner and the State Tax Assessor shall take whatever action is necessary to implement this subsection, including the adoption of routine technical rules as defined in Title 5, chapter 375, subchapter 2-A.

See title page for effective date.

**CHAPTER 603
H.P. 874 - L.D. 1196**

An Act Regarding Reporting on Spending for Behavioral Health Care Services and To Clarify Requirements for Credentialing by Health Insurance Carriers

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

PART A

Sec. A-1. 24-A MRSA §6903, sub-§1-A is enacted to read:

1-A. Behavioral health care. "Behavioral health care" means services to address mental health and substance use conditions.

Sec. A-2. 24-A MRSA §6951, sub-§13 is enacted to read:

13. Behavioral health care reporting. Beginning January 15, 2023 and annually thereafter, the forum shall submit to the Department of Health and Human Services and the joint standing committee of the Legislature having jurisdiction over health coverage and health insurance matters a report on behavioral health care spending using claims data from the Maine Health Data Organization and information on the methods used to reimburse behavioral health care providers requested annually from payors. As used in this subsection, "payor" has the same meaning as in Title 22, section 8702, subsection 8. The report must include:

A. Of their respective total medical expenditures, the percentage paid for behavioral health care by commercial insurers, the MaineCare program, Medicare, the organization that administers health insurance for state employees and the Maine Education Association benefits trust and the average percentage of total medical expenditures paid for behavioral health care across all payors;

B. The total behavioral health care-related nonclaims-based payments and associated member months;

C. The total payments associated with substance use disorder services that are redacted from the payor's claims data submissions to the Maine Health Data Organization as required under 42 Code of Federal Regulations, Part 2, the methods used to redact the substance use disorder claims, the specific code lists that are used for procedure codes, revenue codes and diagnosis codes, provider types and any other detail on the claim that is required to select the substance use disorder redacted claim; and